
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Cabinet Agenda
Monday, 2 March 2015 at 6.00 pm
Town Hall, Queen's Square, Priory Meadow, Hastings TN34 1QR

For further information, please contact Michael Courts on 01424 451764 or email 
mcourts@hastings.gov.uk

Page No.

1.  Apologies for Absence
2.  Declarations of Interest
3.  Notification of any additional items
4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2015 and the Budget 

Cabinet meeting held on 16 February 2015
1 - 8

5.  Hastings and St Leonards Play Space Strategy Refresh 9 - 38
(Virginia Gilbert, Head of Amenities, Resorts and Leisure)
(Cabinet Decision)

6.  Cabinet Appointments to Committee, Working Groups and 
Partnerships etc

39 - 40

(Christine Barkshire-Jones, Chief Legal Officer)
(Cabinet Decision)

7.  Additional Urgent Items (if any)

Public Document Pack



2



CABINET

2 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 1

Present: Councillors Birch (Chair), Chowney (Vice-Chair), Cartwright, Forward, 
Hodges, Poole, Atkins and Pragnell

Apologies for absence were notes for Councillor 

60. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following Councillors declared an interest in the minutes:

Councillor Minute Number Interest
Chowney 62 – Social Lettings 

Agency Update
Prejudicial – he owns a 
second property, in 
addition to his main 
residence

Forward 62 – Social Lettings 
Agency Update

Prejudicial – she owns a 
second property, in 
addition to her main 
residence

61. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 JANUARY 2015 

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 5 January 2015 be 
approved and signed by the chair as a correct record.

MATTERS FOR CABINET DECISION

62. SOCIAL LETTINGS AGENCY UPDATE 

Councillors Chowney and Forward, having declared a prejudicial interest in this item, 
left the chamber while the matter was discussed.

The Head of Housing and Development presented a report which advised of the 
results of a feasibility study carried out into the establishment of a social lettings 
agency in the town, and recommended the piloting of a private sector accommodation 
leasing scheme as the first stage of the council’s plans.

Hastings had a comparatively high proportion of housing stock in the private rented 
sector.  Changes to the local housing market over recent years had resulted in a 
significant shortfall in the supply of accommodation available to meet local housing 
need at an affordable price.   The purpose of an accommodation leasing scheme 
would be to improve access to good quality accommodation, particularly for low 
income households.

The council currently operated a Letstart scheme, to assist local households who were 
at risk of becoming homeless, and Shelter had been commissioned by the council to 
assess the feasibility of developing this provision to provide a social letting agency in 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



CABINET

2 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 2

Hastings.  Consideration was also given to examples of best practice from other 
authorities, who had implemented similar schemes.  

As part of the feasibility study, Shelter had consulted with a variety of stakeholders 
including, landlords, letting agents and tenants.  The results of the study indicated that 
it would be feasible to introduce a social letting agency in Hastings, and there was 
likely to be a significant demand for affordable, accessible housing solutions from local 
people.

The report recommended piloting an accommodation licencing scheme, with between 
60 and 100 units of accommodation. A second phase, which would involve the council 
managing accommodation on behalf of private landlords, could then be introduced if 
the first phase was a success.

Councillor Birch moved approval of the recommendations to the report, which was 
seconded by Councillor Hodges.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Cabinet approve a pilot of a private sector 
leasing scheme in 2015/16 as part of the establishment of a social lettings 
agency

The reason for this decision was:
Private sector accommodation in Hastings is becoming increasingly difficult to access 
for local people in housing need.  Many low income households report problems 
securing accommodation due to the level of fees and deposits charged by letting 
agents and landlords and a reluctance by some to let to those in receipt of housing 
benefit.

Current levels of financial assistance available to support local people into 
accommodation, such as that provided through the East Sussex Discretionary Support 
Scheme and the Welfare Reform service (funded by East Sussex County Council), 
may continue but reduce from April 2015 exacerbating the problem.

At the same time the council continues to receive reports concerning the poor quality 
of accommodation or the standard of housing management offered to some of those 
who have managed to find housing.

The council had therefore been exploring other options to enable households to 
access accommodation that is affordable and of good quality.

A feasibility study was commissioned to consider the council developing a social 
lettings agency with the aim of reducing tenancy start-up costs and improving 
accommodation and housing management standards.  The report sets out the main 
findings of the study and recommends that consideration is given to the establishment 
of a pilot leasing programme in 2015/16 as part of the development of a social lettings 
agency to assist the council to meet housing need in Hastings (the full feasibility report 
is available on request).  

 

Page 2



CABINET

2 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 3

63. DISCRETIONARY COUNCIL TAX RELIEF - SECTION 13A 1C 

The Head of Finance presented a report for the council to consider a countywide 
discretionary reduction in liability policy.

Under section 13A 1c of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the council was 
provided with additional discretionary powers to provide assistance to taxpayers in 
instances when existing legislation does not provide a discount  or the council feels 
the level of discount given is insufficient given the circumstances.

Following a recent council tax reduction tribunal, local authorities had been advised to 
adopt a policy which set out their guidelines and procedure in respect of section 13a 
1c.  All five East Sussex authorities had developed a consistent policy, a draft of which 
was appended to the Head of Finance’s report.

The chair proposed an additional recommendation, set out in the resolution below, 
regarding the reduced budget allocated for Discretionary Housing Payments in 
2015/16.  The additional recommendation was supported by the remaining members 
of Cabinet.

Councillor Birch moved approval of the recommendations, set out in the resolution 
below, which was seconded by Councillor Cartwright.

RESOLVED (unanimously):-
1) To agree, in principle, to adopting the proposed discretionary 

reduction in liability policy at appendix 1 to the Head of Finance’s 
report

2) That delegated authority be given to the Head of Finance to finalise the 
policy in conjunction with the other East Sussex authorities and to 
make minor amendments in future years to ensure that the policy 
remains fit for purpose

3) To call on the local Member of Parliament to take up the issue of a 
reduced budget for allocation as Discretionary Housing Payments in 
2015/16

The reason for this decision was:
We have no policy at present and by the adoption of such a policy will make us 
compliant with statutory regulation.

MATTERS FOR COUNCIL DECISION

64. 2015/16 PAY POLICY 

The Executive Manager of People and Organisational Development presented a 
report on the pay policy statement for 2015/16.

Under the Localism Act 2011, the council was required to prepare and publish a pay 
policy statement each financial year.  The statement provided information on issues 
related to the pay of the council’s workforce, and complied with guidance issued by 
the Department of Communities and Local Government.  The council would also look 

Page 3



CABINET

2 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 4

to ensure that the ratio of pay at the top to pay at the median did not exceed the 
national average for the public sector.

The statement would require approval by Full Council, prior to publication.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Cabinet recommends the pay policy to 
Full Council for approval

The reason for this decision was:
The Localism Act 2011 requires Hastings Borough Council to prepare and publish an 
annual pay policy statement.  The purpose of such a statement is to provide 
information about council policies on a range of issues relating to the pay of its 
workforce, particularly its senior staff and its lowest paid employees. A pay policy must 
be prepared for each financial year and must be approved by Full Council, and 
published.

Please note: the pay structure has been updated to reflect the increase which took 
effect from 1 January 2015. 

65. MINUTES OF THE MUSEUMS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 12 
JANUARY 2015 

The minutes of the meeting of Museums Committee held on 12 January 2015 were 
submitted.

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the Museums Committee meeting held 
on 12 January 2015 be received 

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 6.34 pm)

Page 4



CABINET

16 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 1

Present: Councillors Birch (chair), Chowney, Cartwright, Forward, Hodges, 
Poole and Pragnell

Apologies for absence were noted for Councillor Atkins

MATTERS FOR COUNCIL DECISION

RESOLVED – the chair called over the items on the agenda, under rule 13.3 the 
recommendations set out in minute number 68 were agreed without being called 
for discussion

66. DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2015/16 - 2017/18 

The Head of Corporate Services presented the draft corporate plan 2015/16 to 
2017/18.

The corporate plan set out in the strategic direction of the organisation and the 
priorities the council would seek to achieve.  The layout of the draft corporate plan had 
been refined to clearly set out the council’s visions and values, as well as key projects 
that would be undertaken over the coming years.

The report gave an overview of the consultation process for the draft corporate plan, 
detailed comments had been sought from a range of community organisations in the 
town, and more general public consultation had also been undertaken.  A summary of 
the consultation responses received was provided, in general, the responses did not 
highlight specific amendments to either the draft corporate plan or budget.

Budget Council would be asked to approve the draft corporate plan, together with the 
supporting budget, at its meeting on 25 February 2015.

Councillor Chowney moved approval of the recommendations to the report, which was 
seconded by Councillor Cartwright.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that: -
1) Cabinet recommends to the Council, that the content of the attached 

documents for the basis of the council’s corporate plan 2015-16 to 
2017/18, subject to the proviso that any significant amendment made 
to the council’s draft budget be reflected in the final corporate plan 
text;

2) Delegated authority be given to the Director of Corporate Resources, 
after consultation with the Leader of the Council, to make further 
revisions as is considered necessary to the attached plan prior to 
publication to reflect decisions made on the council’s budget;

3) A retrospective year-end report on performance and the actual 
performance indicator information for 2014/15 be presented to the 
Overview and Scrutiny committees in June, prior to consideration by 
the Cabinet meeting in July 2015; and that the Council be asked to 

Public Document Pack

Page 5



CABINET

16 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 2

delegate authority to that Cabinet meeting to agree 2015/16 
performance indicators based on previous year’s performance, and;

4) All who submitted views as part of the consultation process be 
thanked for their contributions

The reason for this decision was:
The council needs to approve the corporate plan as it is a statement of Hastings 
Borough Council’s strategic direction to 2018.  It sets out how we will ensure that we 
successfully address our priorities, meet the needs of our communities, and ensure 
we have a strong dedicated and motivated workforce to deliver our strategic priorities. 

  

67. REVENUE BUDGETS 2014/15 (REVISED) AND 2015/16, PLUS CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 2014/15 TO 2017/18 

The Head of Finance presented the revenue budgets 2014/15 (revised) and 2015/16, 
plus capital programme 2014/15 to 2017/18.

The revised budget set out variations in income and expenditure since the budget was 
set in February 2014.

The budget for 2015/16 acknowledged the very significant reductions in external 
funding received by the council, in line with the expectations set out in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy.  The council had been advised that the funding for 
discretionary housing payments had been reduced by 30%.  An efficiency support 
grant had been included in the core settlement for 2015/16.

In order to achieve a balanced budget, an increase on 1.9% to the borough’s part of 
the council tax in 2015/16 was proposed.  Additionally, £430,000 of the transition 
reserve would be required to support the budget in 2015/16.

Due to the ongoing reductions in funding facing the organisation, it was necessary for 
all council services to continue to identify savings and efficiencies.

Councillor Birch moved approval of the recommendations to the report which was 
seconded by Councillor Hodges.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Cabinet recommend Council to: - 

1) Approve the revised budget for 2014/15 (appendix A)
2) Approve the draft 2015/16 budget (appendix A)
3) Approve a 1.9% increase in the borough council’s part of the council 

tax
4) Approve the coastal space initiative, a grant of £875,000 being 

payable, as detailed in appendix P and the main body of the report
5) Approve the capital programme 2014/15 (revised) to 2017/18 (appendix 

R)
6) Approve the proposed expenditure from the renewal and repairs 

reserve, and information technology reserve (appendices J and I 

Page 6



CABINET

16 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 3

respectively) and those items from other reserves shown in appendix 
H that can proceed without further reference to Cabinet or Council

7) Approve that the use of the monies identified in the budget for invest 
to save schemes be determined by the Head of Finance in consultation 
with the Leader of the Council

8) Approve the revised Land and Property Disposal Programme 
(appendix L) and agree that disposals can be brought forward if 
market conditions make it sensible to do so

9) Agree that schemes marked with an asterisk in the capital programme 
can proceed without further reference to Cabinet or Council

10)Agree work on priority income and efficiency reviews (PIER) should 
continue and where possible identify a sustainable budget for a period 
in excess of 1 year.  A mid-year review, for members and officers, to 
be undertaken in light of the continuing severe government grant 
reductions

11)Approve the revised parking charges as per appendix M from April 
2015 with no further increase for a period of 24 months

12)Approve the detailed recommendations in Appendix N, which relate to 
the setting of council tax in accordance with sections 31 to 36 of the 
Local Government Act 1992

The reason for this decision was:
The level of government funding to the council continues to fall and is expected to 
carry on falling until at least 2018-19. Since 2010/11 funding has been reduced by 
more than 50% in cash terms on a like for like basis
Major reductions in funding in 2015/16 are set to continue to 2018/19 and possibly 
beyond and this will impact heavily upon the council’s ability to provide services and 
grants across all areas of existing activity. To ensure key corporate priorities are 
achieved it remains imperative that the limited resources available are properly 
targeted.
The council needs to be in a position to match its available resources to its priorities 
across the medium term and to maintain sufficient reserves and capacity to deal with 
potentially large and unexpected events in addition to fluctuations in income and 
expenditure levels.
The council is exposed to a much greater degree of volatility in the level of funding it 
receives through non domestic rates.  In addition it is also exposed to a much higher 
degree of volatility in terms of council tax support claims – the council now receiving 
an upfront sum as part of the annual grant statement rather than reimbursement of 
actual costs.
Further reductions in grant funding have major implications for the council and as such 
work needs to continue to identify and make savings in order to produce balanced 
budgets in 2016/17 and beyond.

68. TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
2015/16 

The Head of Finance submitted a report to consider the draft treasury 
management and annual investment strategy.  The strategy provided a 
framework for the management for the council’s investments, cash flow and 
borrowing activities.  

Page 7



CABINET

16 FEBRUARY 2015

CAB. 4

The council complied with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management.  Under statutory provisions, the council was required to 
determine the treasury management strategy statement, minimum revenue 
provision (MRP) policy and annual investment strategy (2015/16) prior to start 
of the new financial year.

RESOLVED that Cabinet: -
1) Recommends that the Council approve the Treasury 

Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
Policy and Annual Investment Strategy (2015/16

2) Recommends to Council that the current year’s stregy remains 
unaltered

The reason for this decision was:
The council seeks to minimise the costs of borrowing and maximise investment 
income whilst ensuring the security of its investments.  The sums involved are 
large and the assumptions made play an important part in determining the 
annual budget. Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice represents best 
practice and ensures compliance with statutory requirements.

(The chair declared the meeting closed at. 6.42 pm)

Page 8



$4g1oibwv.doc
Report Template v25.0

Page 1 of 4

Agenda Item No: 5

Report to: Cabinet

Date of Meeting: 2 March 2015

Report Title: Hastings and St Leonards Play Space Strategy Refresh

Report By: Virginia Gilbert
Head of Amenities, Resorts and Leisure

Purpose of Report

To present the refreshed Hastings and St Leonards Play Space Strategy, with 
proposed actions, for consideration. 

Recommendation(s)

1. That the contents of the revised Play Space Strategy be agreed.
2. That the proposed actions be agreed.

Reasons for Recommendations

The Council and it's partners are committed to the implementation of the Hastings and 
St Leonards Play Space Strategy (2011). This refreshed version continues to embrace 
the agreed framework and proposes new actions. The strategy will ensure that a 
maximum number of children and young people from across the Borough have access 
to quality play spaces, which can be sustained within allocated budgets.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



$4g1oibwv.doc 
Report Template v25.0

Page 2 of 4

 

Introduction

1. Access to good quality play spaces enables children and young people to enjoy 
their right to play and enhances their ability to achieve their true potential. Play is 
recognised by Hastings Borough Council as vitally important to the wellbeing of 
Hastings. It is important to read this document in conjunction with HBC’s Play 
Development Strategy ‘Right to Play’, which has a broader focus than play spaces.

2.  AmicusHorizons Ltd, Orbit Housing Association and Hastings Borough Council are 
the principle providers of our local publically accessible equipped play spaces. In 
September 2011 the initial version of this joint strategy was agreed. To inform the 
strategy a comprehensive audit was carried out which highlighted the quality and 
value of equipped play spaces.  It was clear that large numbers of poor value sites 
could not be sustained as lifetime maintenance costs or improvement costs were 
high, this remains the case. 

3. The refreshed version, attached, continues to embrace the original agreed 
framework which determines a realistic and sensible distribution of equipped play 
spaces that can be sustained within allocated budgets. 

4. Increasingly the Council now favours improving existing facilities in the local area of 
the new development, (off site contributions), but ask for on-site play facilities 
where there are no other sites nearby. This model of strategically locating good 
quality play spaces has enabled us to sustain and enhance the coverage of good 
play spaces. This approach is soon to be reflected in the revised supplementary 
planning guidance relating to the provision of play spaces in proposed housing 
developments. 

5. Historically AmicusHorizon and Orbit Housing Association consider areas where 
they have the greatest density of their tenants, when making decisions regarding 
investing in play sites. The audited list of playgrounds helps to highlight the 
priorities for any potential funding, regardless of which organisation owns the site.

Update

6. The refreshed strategy has two aims.

a. Improve and sustain existing key play spaces and subject to funding, develop new 
sites so that the maximum numbers of children can access good value and good 
quality rated equipped play spaces, within a 600 metre straight line distance from 
their home.

b. Seek to provide informal space to play where there is an identified play need.

7. Updated assessments of each playground were completed in October 2014, using 
the same robust criteria, based on Play England national guidance. The 
assessment scores are based on the quality of maintenance, accessibility and the 
quality of play value.

Page 10



$4g1oibwv.doc 
Report Template v25.0

Page 3 of 4

8. To further inform the process, 600 metre straight line catchments for each good 
rated equipped play space have been mapped. Additional maps contain further 
layers of information such as numbers and ages of children living in lower super 
output areas. 

9. Since the 2011 audit the number of residential properties within a 600 metre 
straight line catchment of good rated playgrounds has been extended from an 
estimated 24,308 to 32,047. 5 new equipped play spaces have been built, 2 
removed and 2 have been improved from a low to good rating. All good rated 
equipped play spaces have been retained in this period. 

10. The strategy recognises that a greater understanding of our local neighbourhoods 
is essential in order to properly address local play need. The strategy reflects a 
flexible approach as in some neighbourhoods it may be appropriate to adopt a local 
play solution to address the specific local need, rather than rely solely on the 600 
metre catchment mapping information.   

Conclusion

11. The strategy outlines key actions for 2015-17 which are achievable with current 
planned budgets. These include: i) planned improvements at 4 HBC sites and 1 
closure, ii) condition surveys for all equipped play spaces to enable a planned 
response to life cycles of equipment iii) further review of informal play need, 
including spaces within 60 metres of children and young people's homes.  
AmicusHorizon and Orbit Housing Association have yet to confirm plans. 

12. Improvements have been made since the 2011 audit, however there remains 
significant areas of the town still not within a reasonable distance of a good rated 
equipped play space.

Wards Affected

Ashdown, Baird, Braybrooke, Castle, Central St. Leonards, Conquest, Gensing, 
Hollington, Maze Hill, Old Hastings, Ore, Silverhill, St. Helens, Tressell, West St. 
Leonards, Wishing Tree

Area(s) Affected

Central Hastings, East Hastings, North St. Leonards, South St. Leonards

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness Yes
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) Yes
Risk Management Yes
Environmental Issues Yes
Economic/Financial Implications Yes
Human Rights Act Yes
Organisational Consequences No

Page 11



$4g1oibwv.doc 
Report Template v25.0

Page 4 of 4

Local People’s Views Yes

Background Information

Hastings & St Leonards Play Space Strategy 2015-17 'Space to Play'

Officer to Contact

Keith Duly
Leisure Development Manager
kduly@hastings.gov.uk

Page 12



 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 

 

Page 13



 2

 

Hastings and St leonards Play Space Strategy 2015-2 017 

‘Space to Play’ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Foreword 

 

Welcome to the refreshed Hastings and St Leonards play space strategy for 2015 – 2017.  
This strategy recognises every child has a right to play and sets out how we plan to 
achieve our aim of every child having a safe, good quality play area within a 600 metre 
straight line distance from their home. 
 
The strategy has been developed in partnership with AmicusHorizon and Orbit South 
Housing Association who each have a role in delivering quality play spaces for children in 
Hastings and St Leonards.  A number of play areas have been developed or significantly 
improved since this strategy was initiated in 2011 and the aim will be to continue these 
improvements despite a challenging financial climate.  Joint working with other 
organisations to obtain funding has proven to be successful and we will look to continue 
this in the future. 
 
Community involvement is key to this strategy and local people, and particularly children 
and young people will be a vital part of the planning, designing and managing of their play 
spaces for the future.  
 

 

Cllr Dawn Poole  

Lead Member, Amenities, Resort and Leisure Services  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



 3

Contents: 

 

1.0     Introduction 

2.0     Aims of this strategy 

3.0     Value of play 

4.0     Local planning policy for children’s play provision 

5.0     Play space audit 

5.1  Play space audit 2014 - summary of key findings 

5.2  Performance indicators 

6.0     Maintenance and inspections 

7.0     Developers contributions 

7.1  External Funding 

7.2 -Boyne Road play space – case study 

8.0     Consultation 

9.0     The removal of equipped play spaces 

10.0   The project team 

11.0   Key recommendations for 2015-17 action plan 

12.0   Appendices 

12.1 - Appendix A 2014 Equipped play space audit results  

12.2 - Appendix B 2014 Multi-use game areas, kick-about areas and skate parks  

12.3 - Appendix C 2014 Audit assessment criteria 

12.4 - Appendix D 2014 Play space audit mapping 

12.5 - Appendix E Summary of national guidance for distance thresholds 

12.6 – Appendix F Summary of equipped play space improvements 2011-2015 

12.7 - Appendix G Hastings Adventure Playground – case study 

12.8 - Appendix H Skate parks and multi-use games areas 

12.9 - Appendix I Primary contacts details 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 4

                                                
1 Adopted by HBC Cabinet September 2011 

1.0 Introduction 

AmicusHorizon, Orbit South Housing Association Ltd (Orbit) and Hastings Borough 

Council (HBC) are the principle providers of publicly accessible equipped play spaces in 

Hastings and St Leonards. This strategy underpins a joint commitment and approach to 

children’s play spaces.  

 

In September 2011 the initial version of this joint strategy was agreed between 

AmicusHorizon and HBC1.  To inform the strategy an audit was carried out which 

highlighted the quality and value of equipped play spaces.  It was clear that large numbers 

of low value sites could not be sustained as lifetime maintenance costs or improvement 

costs are very high, this remains the case.  

 

This document is the ‘refreshed’ version of the 2011 Hastings & St Leonards play space 

strategy. This strategy now formally includes Orbit as a key partner. This latest version will 

continue to embrace the original agreed framework. The framework determines a realistic 

and sensible distribution of equipped play spaces that can be sustained within reducing 

budgets. This refreshed version includes updated mapping and audit information. The 

updated information will help to inform the development of a new partnership action plan..  

 

To achieve improvement it will be necessary for all providers to work more closely 

together and adopt this strategy for play space provision. This joint strategy is led by the 

three principle partners. However it is important to recognise the responsibility of a much 

broader range of organisations in helping to ensure that our local children have the 

opportunity to enjoy quality play spaces. Further partnership collaborations to maximise 

opportunities and meet play needs are welcomed. Working closely with our residents, 

communities, schools and voluntary groups is vital to making this strategy work. 

 

It is important to read this document in conjunction with HBC’s play development strategy 

‘Right to Play’, which has a broader focus than play spaces. ‘Right to Play’ includes a 

focus on the delivery of community play opportunities, including providing play workers for 

events and neighbourhood groups. It relies on revenue budgets and facilitates a 

Page 16



 5

                                                
2
 http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/community_living/pdfs/playstrategy_2014_19 

 

partnership approach to deliver a range of initiatives and services2. 

 

 
2.0 Aims of this strategy 

The shared strategic aims, listed below, have been refined to enable a focused approach. 

This approach uses the available resources in an effective way, in order to maximise 

impact on the provision of accessible quality play spaces. 

 

Working in partnership we aim to: 

 

•  Improve and sustain existing key play spaces and subject to funding, develop new 

sites so that the maximum numbers of children can access good value and good 

quality rated equipped play spaces, within a 600 metre straight line distance from 

their home.  

 

•  Seek to provide informal space to play where there is an identified play need.  

 

We recognise that greater understanding of our local neighbourhoods is essential in order 

to properly address local play need. With greater insight of where children and young 

people live and how they move around the locality, we can provide appropriate local 

informal space to play. We recognise that the strategy must have a flexible approach as in 

some neighbourhoods it may be appropriate to adopt a local play solution to address the 

specific local need, rather than rely solely on the 600 metre catchment mapping 

information.    

 

Page 17



 6

                                                
3 David Lloyd George (1926) 
4 Better Places to Play (2009) Play England 

3.0 Value of play  

‘The right to play is the child's first claim on the community. Play is nature's training for life. 

No community can infringe that right without doing enduring harm to the minds and bodies 

of its citizens’3.  

 

Every child has the right to Play. Outdoor play is essential in ensuring that all children are 

mentally and physically healthy. Increasing and maintaining the provision of good quality 

free outdoor equipped play spaces will enhance the quality and equality of all of our 

borough’s children and young people’s lives. It will contribute to the realisation of other 

local authority policy and service objectives. These include objectives around: 

• Healthy children and young people 

• Children and young people who feel safe 

• Children and young people enjoying themselves and achieving their potential 

• Children and young people making a positive contribution 

• Community cohesion4 

 

We recognise that views about the value of equipped play provision in particular have 

shifted significantly over the past few years: 

• Play England, advisors to central government; believe the play value of equipped sites 

can be enhanced by spending less on expensive rubber surfacing, tarmac and 

fencing. The play value of equipped play spaces can be increased by ensuring access 

to the natural environment and the valuable ‘loose parts’ play that it provides.  

• Achieving high value and good quality play spaces, must incorporate the need for 

children to learn from acceptable levels of risk. Designs should take into account the 

safety of children and families, whilst enhancing opportunities for adventurous play. 

Appendix G showcases the Hastings Adventure Playground, an exciting and very 

unique example of our staffed adventurous play site, located in Ore.  

• Accessibility and usability must be considered to help inform us on to what extent any 

child can truly play in our equipped play spaces. Children of multiple abilities should 

be able to play together not just alongside each other. 

Page 18



 7

                                                
5 The Hastings Planning Strategy: Proposed Submission Version, 2012 (10:13) 

 

4.0 Local Planning Policy for Children’s Play Provi sion 

This Play Space Strategy has influenced and shaped the local planning policy for 

children’s play provision (Policy CI3 as set out in the adopted Hastings Planning Strategy). 

The Hastings Planning Strategy states ‘that it is essential for every child to have access to 

quality play spaces’ and acknowledges the role of not only Amicus Horizon Housing [Orbit 

Housing Association] and Hastings Borough Council in providing play provision, but also 

highlights the need for developer’s contributions and the requirement for ‘developers to 

design housing environments in which children have space to play5’. Furthermore, the 

associated supplementary planning guidance which relates to the ‘provision of children’s 

play space in housing developments’ provides further guidance on the Council’s 

expectations regarding play spaces. The guidance provides developers with details of 

standards and a code of practice regarding the provision of children’s play space in 

developments of new family housing. The guidance is currently being revised in order to 

be in line with this refreshed play space strategy and emerging development management 

plan.  

 

Play provision should be treated in the same way as other significant community 

infrastructure needs. If the play needs of a new development are to be properly 

addressed, the proposed dwelling type, changes in demographics and the geographical 

make up of a community should be considered. This strategy ensures we are building a 

frame work to identify the play need in areas of any proposed new development. 

 

 

5.0 Play space audit 2014 

In 2011 it was agreed between AmicusHorizon and HBC to look afresh at our play areas 

using a new audit model influenced through Play England guidance. Orbit followed suit 

and assessed their playgrounds using the same model in 2013. This model, amongst 

other things, more thoroughly tests a site’s play quality & value. All sites were assessed 

using the same model and the results are combined to give us a new perspective from 

which to move forward. The assessment criteria used is illustrated in appendix C. The 

audit scores are based on three key areas: 

Page 19



 8

                                                
6 5 of the un-adopted sites have been audited and they are depicted on the overall plan. 

i) accessibility 

ii) quality of maintenance 

iii) play value 

 

The audit results are illustrated in appendix A and are coded as follows: 

Green (GV/GQ) = A site that has good play value, good access and in good condition 

Red(LV/GQ) = A site that has low play value but good access and in good condition 

Yellow (GV/LQ) = A site that has good play value but poor access and poor condition 

Blue (LV/LQ) = A site that has low play value, poor access and poor condition 

 

5.1 Play space audit 2014 - summary of key findings  

55 play spaces were audited in October 2014. The ownership of these is as follows: 

 

Total number of 

equipped play 

spaces (including 

play trails) 

Number of ‘good’ rated 

equipped play spaces  

Ownership 

29 15 HBC 

16 8 AmicusHorizon 

4 0 Orbit Housing 

3 0 Remain un-adopted (from new 

developments)7 

3 1 Remain un-adopted (from new 

developments) and are currently 

leased and maintained by HBC6 

 

The full audit information is shown in a results table in appendix A.  The information 

includes a detailed breakdown for each site and an overall rating, as outlined in section 

5.0. 

 

The map in Figure 1 shows locations and audit results for each equipped play space. A  

more detailed version is available at: http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map1 

Page 20



 9

Figure 1. Equipped play spaces mapping showing locations and audit results 

 

Figure 2. Equipped play spaces mapping showing 2011 and 2014 buffer comparison  

 

Page 21



 10 

                                                
7 Methodology for the residential properties calculat ion 
The residential properties are those defined as such on the Local Land and Property Gazetteer (LLPG) as of 4th February 
2015.  The easting and northing centre point for each property (obtained from the LLPG) was added to the GIS as a point.  The 
600m buffer and the points were then analysed on the GIS to determine which points fell inside the buffer.  
 

Figure 2 shows a buffer comparison between the initial 2011 audit and the latest 2014 

audit. Buffers are based on the 600 metre straight line catchments for each good 

quality/good value rated equipped play space.  

 

In February 2015, the number of residential properties which fell within a 600 metre 

straight line catchment of a good rated equipped play space were estimated for 2011 and 

2014. The table below expresses this number as a percentage also. An estimation of the 

catchment is also expressed as hectares. A brief explanation of the methodology is 

summarised in the footnote below.7 When viewing the results as land area, it is important 

to acknowledge the large swathes of land that have no properties on them, such as the 

country park. 

 

 2011 2014 

Number of residential properties which fell 

within a 600m straight line catchment of a 

good rated playground 

24,308 32,047 

 

Above, as a percentage of the total number 

of  residential properties within Hastings and 

St leonards (43,421)  

56% 73.8% 

Proportion of Hastings and St Leonards 

within a 600m straight line catchment of a 

good rated equipped play spaces.  

 

(NB: The Borough is 3079 Ha) 

34.4% (1059 Ha) 

 

50.7% (1561 Ha) 

 
Figure 2. Table showing number of residential properties which fall within a 600m straight 

line catchment of a good rated equipped play space.  

 

Key findings of the October 2014 audit: 

• All good rated equipped play spaces assessed in 2011 have been retained 

• 5 new equipped play spaces have been built since the last audit in 2011 

Page 22



 11 

                                                
8
 http://www.hastings.gov.uk/decisions_democracy/how_we_make_decisions/policies_strategies/leisure_facilities_strategy/ 

 

 

• 2 equipped play spaces have been removed since 2011 

• 2 previously low rated equipped play spaces have been upgraded to a good rating 

since 2011 

• The 600m straight line catchment of good rated playgrounds has been extended over 

the period to include an additional 7,730 residential properties 

 

Further details of improvements since 2011 can be found in appendix  F. 

 

All of the equipped play spaces and their audit ratings are annotated on the maps in 

appendix D. As well as providing an overview of the current position, the maps will also be 

used to help inform the action planning stage.  The maps show the catchment for each 

equipped play space and also demonstrate areas of inadequate provision, showing gaps 

in areas of the town where there is a play deficiency. Play spaces with a rating of less than 

good, which are located in play deficient areas will be considered as a potential priority for 

future improvement. The mapping, in appendix D, has been layered with additional 

information including:  

• recognised cycling and walking routes 

• numbers of children in each lower super output area 

• indices of multiple deprivation 

• locations of educational establishments 

• identified housing development sites  

• multi-use games areas, skate parks and open space  

 

Additional leisure facility mapping is available in the Hastings and Rother leisure facilities 

strategy (currently being refreshed)8. This range of information will help to inform future 

decisions regarding play space development. However it is important to note that this 

information must be used alongside local insight and knowledge. Even with the investment 

since 2011, there is still a considerable amount of work needed to maintain the current 

levels of quality and to maximise the number of children living within 600 metre straight 

line walking distance of a good quality play space. 

 

Page 23



 12 

                                                
9 “Managing risk in play provision: a position statement” (2013) Children's Play Council 

(http://www.ncb.org.uk/cpc). 

 

5.2 Performance Indicators   

To enable progress to be measured, the proposed action plan (section 11) will include 

SMART targets. In addition we have adopted one principle performance indicator 

described as; 

 

• the number of residential properties within a 600m straight line catchment of a good 

rated  play space.  

 

A key aspiration of this refreshed strategy is to develop an additional performance 

indicator to effectively measure the impact of informal play spaces. 

 

6.0 Maintenance and safety inspections 

This is carried out by different appointed contractors in accordance with all the appropriate 

health & safety legislation and in compliance with British Standard EN1176 and other, 

associated standards.  Each site is visited regularly and checked thoroughly to ensure 

items are safe for play by children. The frequency of regular inspection visits is based on 

site usage and level of risk. The playground inspectors are ROSPA (Royal Society for the 

Prevention of Accidents) accredited.  Each year an independent inspector is 

commissioned by each of our organisations to provide a report on the safety of each play 

space and recommendations for the time scale to improve safety on all pieces of 

equipment which are in need of attention is included.  

 

We aim to strike a common sense approach, balancing the need for children to learn from 

acceptable levels of risk. Play spaces should be designed with the following statement in 

mind: “Children need and want to take risks when they play. Play provision aims to 

respond to these needs and wishes by offering children stimulating, challenging 

environments for exploring and developing their abilities. In doing this, play provision aims 

to manage the level of risk so that children are not exposed to unacceptable risks of death 

or serious injury”9.  

 

Page 24



 13 

7.0 Developers contributions 

In the case of developer contributions (section 106 planning agreements), scope exists to 

improve existing provisions (off site) in proximity to the proposed development, but where 

no suitable equipped play spaces exist within approximately 600 metres / approximately 

within a 15-20 walking distance, HBC will recommend on site play facilities. The mapping 

in this strategy will help to inform which play space site is most appropriate for section 106 

funding, decisions will be based on strategic need, regardless of ownership. Wherever 

possible, space should be made within the new neighbourhood for unequipped, doorstep 

playable space. Development plan sites are illustrated in appendix D. 

 

7.1 External funding 

AmicusHorizon, Orbit and HBC recognise the need to continue to seek and apply for 

external funding in order to both sustain and develop new play areas. Big Lottery funding 

and government Play Pathfinder funding have been available in the past, however 

accessing future funding will prove more challenging in the current financial climate.  

Working together in an agreed approach will help strengthen any further application for 

future funding. 

 

7.2 Boyne Road play space – case study  

A recent example of AmicusHorizon and HBC jointly working to achieve external funds is 

Boyne Road Play Space. (Now known as Barley play space). In mid 2011 a local 

residents association voiced their concerns about the condition and variety of play in their 

neighbourhood. HBC and AmicusHorizon supported the residents association to apply for 

funding to refurbish the space with HBC and AmicusHorizon both supplying some match 

funding to support the bid. A successful bid to Veolia and a new partner Groundwork 

bringing in some extra funding, meant a total of 40k was raised, which helped to refurbish 

and extend the play space. This play space was previously rated low but now achieves a 

good rating. 

 

8.0 - Consultation 

Key local decisions will require community involvement.  All consultation should have an 

agreed approach overseen by the project team (section 10).  For any consultation the 

priority will be to engage children, young people and the community in planning, designing 

and managing play spaces. 

Page 25



 14 

 

9.0 - The removal of equipped play spaces 

Where the audit indicates that a play area is not a priority for retention due to location, 

demographics or condition, then a decision may be made to close the site. Involvement of 

local residents and councillors is essential.  A key consideration will be whether there is 

another accessible play area (that meets the quality/value standard) serving the 

community within an approximate 600 metre straight line threshold.  An action plan for the 

site is to be agreed and alternative use is to be implemented and evaluated regularly. 

Even when a decision is taken to remove equipment from a play area, the site should be 

protected and remain dedicated spaces for play. They will be maintained to a standard 

acceptable for children’s daily use to ensure no barriers to play are created.  

 

 

10.0 - The project team 

A project team has been established, initially consisting of officers from AmicusHorizon 

and HBC and soon to include representatives from Orbit to oversee our joint portfolio of 

play areas.  Their contact details are listed at the end of this document.  The project team 

will need to carry out the following: 

 

� Review and maintain terms of reference and committed membership 

� Continue regularity of meetings 

� Revise administration and reporting methods 

� Involve community and key partners including Hastings and St Leonards play forum 

� Develop a SMART 2015-17 joint action plan 

� Carry out regular monitoring and annual review 

 

 

11.0 - Key Recommendati ons for 2015-17 action p lan 
 
The refreshed play space audit and mapping (appendices A & D) have helped to assess 

future priorities regarding play space investment. Officers recommend that a more detailed 

condition survey of each play space is carried out as a priority; this information will further 

inform and shape the proposed action plan. 

Page 26



 15 

 

 

 

The project team will produce a two year action plan covering the period 2015-17, 

incorporating SMART targets to accompany this strategy.  

 

For the next two year period, the following have been identified as key actions: 

• Promote awareness of the value of quality play spaces & children’s right to play   

• Continue to develop joint partnership between AmicusHorizon, Orbit, HBC and 

stakeholders (sustain joint project team) 

• Carry out a condition survey of each equipped play space 

• Plan for a response to life cycles of equipment and community play needs 

• Identify annual budget for maintenance and repairs 

• Maintain good rated sites (rated GV/GQ = good value/good quality)  

� Improve the following HBC owned sites, which have been identified for investment: 

� Carnoustie Close (using S106 contribution)  

� Kensington Close (using S106 contribution)  

� Hare Way  

� Highwater View, whilst removing nearby Mare Bay 

•     AmicusHorizon and Orbit to review and prioritise their sites  

� AmicusHorizon seek to improve Farley Bank 

• To identify  potential  future  decommissioning (using aforementioned agreed 

consultation protocol) 

• Seek further capital investment including external funding 

• Agree section 106 planning gain funding and strategically distribute funds 

• Identify candidates for community green spaces 

• Review teenage facilities and combine findings into this strategy 

• Investigate social return on investment for local equipped play spaces 

• Support Bexhill Road Residents Association and Groundwork Trust with their fund 

raising efforts for a neighbourhood play space in Combe Valley Countryside Park. 

 
 

Page 27



 - 17 -

12.1 - Appendix A 

2014 Equipped Play Space  Audit Results  

Audit assessment tables and scores 

 

Owned By Site 

S
af

et
y 

an
d 

A
cc

es
s

 

 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 

  

C
om

bi
ne

d 
A

cc
es

s 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

 

V
al

ue
 

C
ol

ou
r 

ke
y

 

M
an

ag
ed

 b
y:

 

HBC Total 27                     
 Alexandra Park 70   84   76   60   HBC 
 Bembrooke Open Space  33   73   50   89   HBC 
 BOS Field 57   80   67   62   HBC 
 Carnoustie Close 40   28   35   26   HBC 
 Cookson Gardens 60   68   64   54   HBC 
 Gensing Gardens 58   77   66   60   HBC 
 Hare Way 42   37   40   17   HBC 
 Harvest Way 37   44   40   30   HBC 
 Heron Close 62   36   51   22   HBC 
 Highwater View 63   58   61   34   HBC 
 Kensington Close 50   58   54   60   HBC 
 Mare Bay Close 42   50   45   20   HBC 
 Seaside Road 60   78   68   80   HBC 
 Shornden (Alex. Park) 66   76   70   75   HBC 
 St. Johns Road 54   68   60   53   HBC 
 Waterside Close 63   80   70   72   HBC 
 West Hill 55   79   65   80   HBC 
 Wishing Tree OS 58   74   65   89   HBC/Amicus 
 Mayfield 5 65   69   67   58   HBC Newlyadopted 
 Redmayne Drive   58   70   63   63   HBC Newlyadopted 

P
age 28



 - 18 -

 Seafront Pelham place 121   100   110   85   HBC/Foreshoretrust 
 Ore Valley Rd- The Sidings 77   70   74   61   HBC newlyadopted 
 Celendine Drive 74   80   76   72   HBC newly adopted 
 Fleetwood Close 56   67   62   17   HBC newly adopted 
 Knowsley Close 48   67   58   24   HBC newly adopted 
 Welton Rise 1 58   50   54   46   HBC newly adopted 
 Welton Rise 2 46   64   55   19   HBC newly adopted 
HBC t rails  Total 
2                     
 Bembrook play trail                 HBC 
 Seafront play/exercise trail                  HBC/Foreshoretrust 
Private  
developers Total 
6                     
 Fairfield Road 59   59   59   60   NotadoptedWimpey 
 Honeysuckle Close 52   56   54   40   NotadoptedWimpey 
 Harbour Way 45   50   47   30   HBC leased 
 Darwell Close 54   47   51   67   HBC leased 
 Harold Road Flats                 Not adopted /audited 
 Helsmans Rise 63   61   62   79   HBC leased 
 
Amicus Total 16                     
 Blackman Avenue 78   66   72   70   Amicus Horizon 
 Oxford Road 100   60   74   60   Amicus Horizon 
 Thomas Brassey 64   54   59   37   Amicus Horizon 
 Willingdon Avenue 41   54   47   36   Amicus Horizon 
 Seven Acre 51   47   49   17   Amicus Horizon 
 Edinburgh Road 47   36   41   29   Amicus Horizon 
Decommissioned  Eversley Crescent 41   31   36   17   Amicus Horizon 
 Brightling Avenue 75   75   75   77   Amicus Horizon 
 Kent Road 69   67   68   67   Amicus Horizon 
 Linley Drive 71   63   67   53   Amicus Horizon 
 Farley Bank (end) 71   57   64   41   Amicus Horizon 
 Mendip (a, b and c) 65   53   59   49   Amicus Horizon 

P
age 29



 - 19 -

 Quantock Gardens 71   44   57   47   Amicus Horizon 
 Halton West View 68   76   71   70   Amicus Horizon 
 Brightling Ave 70   75   72   60   Amicus Horizon 
 Boyne Road 111   90   100   79   Amicus Horizon 
 Decommissioned  Rock Lane 47   31   39   25   Amicus Horizon 
 Red Lake 54   71   61   69   Amicus Horizon 
Orbit  
Total 4             

  Watermill Drive 60   53   57  67   Orbit Housing 
 Flimwell Close 65   56   61   44   Orbit Housing 
 Deepdene 45   56   50   50   Orbit Housing 
 Merrimede 40   75   56   30   Orbit housing 
 Good value/good quality           
 Good value/low quality           
 low value/good quality           
 low value/low quality           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 30



 - 20 -

 

12.2 - Appendix B 

2014  Multi-use game areas, kick-about areas and sk ate parks  

Audit results  

Included here are details of other areas for play.  These are areas that do not have traditional play  
equipment installed on site but are used in other ways.  

    
Site Description Owner 
      
Multi-use games areas     
Alexandra Park 3G sand infill surface HBC 
The Grove School 3G sand infill surface ESCC (licence to HBC) 
Torfield School 3G sand infill surface ESCC (licence to HBC) 
Firs 3G sand infill surface HBC 
Pelham Playa Tarmac - multi use Foreshore Trust 
White Rock, Falaise Road Polymeric coloured HBC 
      
Kickabout courts     
White Rock, Falaise Road Tarmac - basketball HBC 
Seven Acre Close Tarmac - multi use AmicusHorizon 
West Hill  Grass - football goals HBC 
Harbour Way Tarmac kick about Unadopted 
Quantock Gardens Tarmac kick about AmicusHorizon 
Farley Bank Grass - football goals AmicusHorizon 
Oxford Road Tarmac - Multi court AmicusHorizon 
Harkness Drive Tarmac - Kick about Orbit 
Beckley Close Tarmac - Kick about HBC 
      
Skatepark/BMX     
Farley Bank Skate ramp AmicusHorizon 

White Rock Gardens 
Large concrete bowl and 
skatepark HBC 

Wishing Tree Recreation 
Ground 

Skatebowl - small 
concrete HBC/Amicus 

Hollington Recreation Ground BMX trail  HBC 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 - 21 -

12.3 - Appendix C - Audit assessment criteria 

Three assessors independently score each criteria. The maximum score is 4.  The 
criteria is broken down under three headings.  
 
Maintenance 
Freedom from litter/ broken glass/other dangerous material 

Freedom from vandalism 
  Freedom from dog fouling 
  Adequate litter bins and separate dog fouling bis 

Condition of surfaces within play area 
 Signage 

  Condition of seating 
  Cycle racks 
  Condition of play equipment 

 
Safety and access 

  Informal oversight 

Well used by children (How many children & ages, visible signs of use) 

Appropriate lighting 

Entrances proximity and position to road 

Non slip surface and buggy and wheel chair accessible 

Are gates wide enough for wheel chairs (850mm) 

Toilets /changing facilities 

Parking bays adjacent to play space 

Near to car park with drop kerbs at crossing points of any road 

Does the site drain freely 

Alternative exits with clear view for parents 

Opportunities to shade from the sun 
 
Play Value 

Opportunities for imaginative play 

Enticing for children to play 

Meets the play needs of a range of ages and abilities 

Opportunities to change environment ( malleable materials, sand, twigs, den building) 

Variety, choice and risk and challenge available to all 

Places for social play 

Access to the natural environment (Green space, hills, trees, banks, twigs, mud & leaves) 

Opportunities for ball games 

Page 32



 - 22 -

Multiple movement opportunities  

(Sliding,balancing,swinging, jumpling,rotating,crawling,rocking,spinning) 

Quiet and calm areas to sit or just to be 
Aspects of multi sensory play (Different types of movement, textile surfaces, sensory planting) 
 
 

12.4 Appendix D - 2014 Play space audit mapping  

Map 1 – Equipped Playgrounds with MUGAs and skate p ark  

Overview of all open access playgrounds and their audit rating. This map 

includes red circle buffer that depicts good rated play spaces, serving the 

community within an approximate 600 metre/15-20 minute walking distance 

threshold from their home. 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map1 

 

Map 2 - Playgrounds with Local Plan Development sit es and walking & 

cycle routes  

Overview of playgrounds together with sites in the revised Proposed 

Development Management Plan and with Walking and Cycling Routes. 

This map shows the playgrounds and the sites in the revised Proposed 

Development Management  Plan split into <50 dwellings and 50+ Dwellings, it 

also shows the walking and cycling routes from the Hastings Walking and 

Cycling Strategy. 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map2 

 

Map 3 - Playgrounds with educational establishments  

Overview of playgrounds with locations of educational establishments 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map3 

 

Maps 4 - 7 - Playgrounds with number of children in  each lower super 

output area  

Overview of playgrounds with number  of children in the super output areas 

aged 0-14 / 0-4 / 5-9 / 10-14 .Maps 5- 7 show the lower super output areas 

(LSOA) coloured to represent the % of children of the specified age within 

each LSOA. With green being lowest and red being the highest. The actual 

figures are illustrated in the overview maps 9-12. The figures used in 

Page 33



 - 23 -

preparation of maps 4- 7 were taken from ESiF (Table Population by age 

groups and gender in 2001 and 2011 - super output areas). 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map4 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map5  

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map6 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map7 

 

Map 8 - Playgrounds with indices of deprivation 

Overview of playgrounds with indices of multiple deprivation information. 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map8 

 

 

Map 9 - Playgrounds with open space 

Overview of all open access playgrounds with open space. Areas of ancient 

woodland, SAC, SSSI, AONB and private open space have not been 

included.   

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map9 

Map 10 - Playground catchment buffer comparison 201 1 and 2014  

Overview of all open access playgrounds in the 2011 and 2014 audits. This 

map includes red circle buffer that depicts good rated play spaces, serving the 

community within an approximate 600 metre/15-20 minute walking distance 

threshold from their home. 

http://www.hastings.gov.uk/content/decisions_democracy/pdfs/map10 

 

 

12.5 - Appendix E – Summary of national guidance fo r play space distance 

thresholds  

 

The adoption of 600m straight line thresholds, as stated in section 5.2 has been 

influenced by national guidance. Fields in Trust are currently reviewing their national 

guidance regarding distance thresholds for children’s play spaces. The final 

guidance is due in May 2015. Play England’s guidance document ‘Better Places to 

Play Through Planning’ (2009) recommends that ideally children and young people 

should have access to three types of good quality play space: 

 

Page 34



 - 24 -

• A doorstep playable space, such as a grassed area or open space, perhaps a 

home zone sufficiently close to their home with easy access within a 60m 

straight line distance from home.  

 
• A larger space such as a grassed area, a small park or perhaps a school 

playground open to it’s community out of hours which can be reached safely by 

children who are beginning to move around their neighbourhoods 

unaccompanied by adults. Ideally within a 240m straight line distance from 

home.  

 

• A larger neighbourhood play space, with a wider range of play and informal 

recreational opportunities ideally within a 600m straight line distance from their 

home. 

 

The guidance also states that, ‘standards should, on the one hand, be a guide: there 

may well be circumstances where communities, in discussion with the local authority, 

partners and (where provision results from new housing) developers, agree provision 

at variance with the standard. Imaginative and popular play solutions may arise from 

such involvement at this very local, project specific level. In some areas it may be 

appropriate to adopt different or modified standards across the authority to reflect the 

particular circumstances of different parts of a local authority.  On the other hand 

local standards can provide general parameters of expectations amongst 

residents’10.  

 

 

12.6 - Appendix F Summary of equipped play space im provements 2011-2015 

Several playgrounds have been improved or developed since initiating this strategy 

in 2011. Highlights are listed below: 

 

• In 2011 HBC secured 10k external funding from East Sussex County Council for 

additional inclusive play equipment to the Hastings Adventure Playground.  

 

                                                
10 Better Places to Play Through Planning (2009) Play England 

Page 35



 - 25 -

• In 2012 HBC created one large play space, two smaller sites and a series of 

outdoor exercise equipment on Hastings and St Leonards seafront. These 

spaces were externally funded by the Foreshore Trust. HBC also installed some 

inclusive equipment into Alexandra Park’s main play space, funded by section 

106 contributions. In the same year Amicus Horizon and HBC worked in 

partnership with Clive Vale residents association to refurbish Boyne Road play 

space, Amicus Horizons also made improvements to Edinburgh Road play 

space and to Red Lake Natural play space. Orbit Housing commissioned the 

Hastings Recycled Wood Project to improve play opportunities at Watermill Drive 

play space.  

  

• In 2013 HBC constructed a new playground at Celandine Drive funded from a 

S106  contribution, Oxford Road and Deepdene play spaces were refurbished 

by Amicus Horizons and Orbit Housing respectively. In the same year the 

‘Boyley Skate Park’ at White Rock Gardens was extended with the addition of 

a street plaza facility, funded by HBC, Veolia and skate park users facilitated 

by the local Boyley Trust. 

 

• In 2014 Amicus made significant improvements at Halton View play space. HBC 

added a feature crafted from a locally felled tree to the Shorden playground. 

HBC with support from Orbit  opened  a new play space,  built by the 

developer, using 106 contributions in Ore valley Road . 

 

 

12.7 Appendix G – Hastings Adventure Playgrounds – Case Study 

Each Adventure Playground is unique but can be defined as ‘a space dedicated 

solely to children’s play, where skilled adults (play workers) enable and facilitate the 

ownership, development and design of that space – physically, socially and culturally 

– by the children playing there’.11 Our local Hastings Adventure Playground, is a 

space which is constantly evolving and developing as directed by the children 

themselves as they chose how to play and use the space in their own ‘free’ way. 

‘Children should be encouraged and supported to encounter and manage risk for 

                                                
11, Play Pathfinder Briefing on Adventure Playgrounds, (2008) Play England 

Page 36



 - 26 -

themselves through access to challenging play opportunities in a safe environment. 

The benefit to children of challenging play opportunities is balanced with risk when 

carrying out risk assessments’.12  

 

In 2009 Hastings Borough Council received Play Pathfinder funding to develop our 

very own Hastings Adventure Playground located in Ore Valley. The playground is 

accessed by lots of children from the local community on a daily basis.  

 

The playground offers a range of play opportunities and a variety of playable spaces 

including self built challenging play structures and features, informal sports areas, 

wild nature and planted areas. The playground is staffed to allow for regular access 

to fire play, cooking outdoors and for the use of tools and heavy materials to build 

and modify a flexible and evolving play space. The outdoor play space contains a zip 

wire, tyre swings, slides and lots of loose parts to build and play with. The indoor 

play space has room for cooking, arts and crafts etc. There are toilets on site 

including a best practice ‘changing places’ accessible toilet facility and free parking 

close by. The playground is aimed at 8 to 13 year olds and is open, free of charge, 

from 3pm every day after school. Family sessions also take place on a regular basis 

and the playground is well used during the day by a range of groups and users.The 

playground is currently staffed and managed by In2play, who are a local play 

focused community interest company. The running costs are covered by a 

combination of funding from Hastings Borough Council (£26k management 

agreement in 2014/15) and successful external fundraising by In2play.  

 

 

12.8 Appendix H - Skate parks and multi-use games a reas 

This strategy acknowledges that facilities such as skate parks and multi-use games 

areas help to extend the variety of local play experiences often engaging older 

children and young people. In the same way children are involved in designing and 

developing local playgrounds, the town’s largest skate park, known as the Boyley 

Skate Park at White Rock Gardens is another local example of young people 

designing and developing their own space.   

                                                
12 Play England, Play Pathfinder Briefing on Adventure Playgrounds,   2008 

Page 37



 - 27 -

 

Like the innovative Hastings Adventure Playground, the BMX dirt trails at Hollington 

recreation ground have involved young people from design through to self build, 

allowing for evolution and change along the way.    

 

Spaces to play are limited in some neighbourhoods. Grass surfaces often become 

unusable during winter months.   Multi-use games areas help to extend ‘playable’ 

hours by providing a floodlit all weather surface. The areas can be booked for formal 

use, but significant periods are protected to enable local young people to enjoy 

informal ‘free play’.    

 

 

12.9 – Appendix I Primary Contacts   
 
AmicusHorizon Ltd 
The Watch Oak 
Battle  
East Sussex  
TN33 0YA 
 
Mike Bushell - Neighbourhood Manager 
Sussex Region 
01424 728294 
Mike.Bushell@AmicusHorizon.org.uk 
 
Ray Phillips - Project Surveyor  
Sussex Region 
01424 776682 
Ray.Phillips@AmicusHorizon.org.uk 
 
 
Orbit South 
Unit 2  Station Parade, 
Ore Valley Road, 
Hastings,  
TN34 3FH 
 
Janice Howe - Community Investment Officer 
Orbit South 
01424723770 
Janice.Howe@orbit.org.uk 
 
 

 
 
Hastings Borough Council 
Hastings Town Hall 
Queens Road 
Hastings 
East Sussex, TN34 1QR 
Tel: 01424 451066 
 
Laura Beerling – Play Development Officer 
01424 451452 
lbeerling@hastings.gov.uk 
 
Keith Duly - Leisure Development Manager 
01424 451189 
kduly@hastings.gov.uk 
 
Terry Drinkwater – Parks and Open Spaces Manager  
01424 451372 
tdrinkwater@hastings.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 38



$lc102gkc.doc
Report Template v24.0

Page 1 of 2

Agenda Item No: 6

Report to: Cabinet

Date of Meeting: 2 March 2015

Report Title: Cabinet Appointments to Committees, Working Groups, 
Partnerships etc

Report By: Christine Barkshire-Jones 
Chief Legal Officer

Purpose of Report

To agree the appointment of a new Member to the Member Training and Development 
Group.

Recommendation(s)

1.   To appoint Councillor Roberts to the Member Training and Development Group, in 
place of Councillor Batsford 

Reasons for Recommendations

Members are required to serve on the committees, working groups, partnerships and 
representative bodies to which Cabinet appoints. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



$lc102gkc.doc 
Report Template v23.0

Page 2 of 2

 

Background
1.1 Members of the Member Training and Development Group are appointed by 
Cabinet.

1.2 A request had been received from the Labour Group for Councillor Roberts to sit 
on the Member Training and Development Group, in place of Councillor Batsford.

1.3 Members are nominated until the Borough elections, in 2016. 

Wards Affected

None

Area(s) Affected

None

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness Yes
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) Yes
Risk Management No
Environmental Issues Yes
Economic/Financial Implications No
Human Rights Act Yes
Organisational Consequences Yes
Local People’s Views No

Background Information

     

Officer to Contact

Christine Barkshire-Jones
cbarkshire-jones@hastings.gov.uk
Officer Telephone Number: 01424 451731

Page 40


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2015 and the Budget Cabinet meeting held on 16 February 2015
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 16/02/2015 Cabinet
	Minutes


	5 Hastings and St Leonards Play Space Strategy Refresh
	Hastings and St Leonards Play Space Strategy 2015/17 Space to Play

	6 Cabinet Appointments to Committee, Working Groups and Partnerships etc

